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NORBURY Part 3
Norbury’s Golden Age was drawing to its close.  William Lock and his wife Freddie were growing old, though still so much in love that to be separated for even a day (see ”The  Locks of Norbury Park” chap. 25) brought sadness to both;  but on the 25th October 1810, the old man died at the age of 78 to be followed by his son William Jnr, and who, incidentally, added ‘e’ to the family name.
William Locke had no interest in, or affection for, Norbury and in 1819 put the estate up for auction; it was sold to a Robinson, who in 1822 sold it to Fuller Maitland.  This man actually exchanged the estate, almost immediately, with J.P. Sperling for his estate on the Thames.  Sperling looked after the place very well and in 1848 it was bought by Thomas Grissell.  This was the man who gave the barn in Westhumble to be used as a mission hall for the navies who were working on the railway from 1865 to 1867, and which eventually became St Michael’s Chapel.  He also, with Thomas Cubitt, negotiated the sale of land over which the line ran.
When Sperling died in 1874 the estate passed to his grandson and heir, Thomas de la Garde Grissell, who in 1890 sold it to Leopold Salomons whose name will be gratefully remembered for his gift to the nation in 1914 of 230 acres of land on Box Hill including the summit - thus starting the gifts of land which has resulted in the Box Hill Estate of the National Trust.
Salomons died in 1914, which was a pity because, according to the Times, 17th February 1930, he intended ensuring that the whole of Norbury Park should be preserved in a similar manner.  But at his death it was sold to Sir Edward Mountain, chairman and managing director of the Eagle Star Insurance Company.
[bookmark: _GoBack]In 1930 it was rumoured that he was contemplating its sale to a speculative builder.  Fortunately, at the time, a most enlightened man was Chairman of the Surrey County Council:  J. Chuter Ede, later to become Home Secretary in Clement Attlee’s Government.  He was horrified at the thought of this desecration and realised that bold action was needed to save this jewel of the English countryside from being ravished by property developers.  He went down to Norbury without delay, accompanied by the Clerk to the Council and with his own cheque book in his pocket; and in the famous painted room paid, on his own responsibility, £85,000 for the Estate.  This heroic action was fortunately supported by the council, and the gem was saved for posterity under its ownership.
The house with eight acres of land was sold privately (with certain restrictive covenants) to Dr Marie Stopes who was followed in 1959 by John and Barbara Spencer and in 1984 by the present owners, Frank and Wendy Chapman, who are doing a splendid job in restoring the house to something of its former glory, with gold leaf on the famous ceiling and mahogany doors polished like glass,  When the redecorations are complete the Lock’s old home will be truly resplendent.
The park has been administered by the Surrey Council for the past 50 years and has provided untold enjoyment for a host of people who like to take their recreation in the quiet serenity of this lovely valley.  Let us fervently hope that the proposals at present under discussion will in no way disturb this peace and serenity.  May the spirit of Chuter Ede hover over Surrey County in its deliberations!
Ronald Shepperd

 

